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Number 
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Contract Claims  
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Based on Trial Ruling 
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Reply in Support of the State’s Motion to Exclude 
Nassiri’s Damages Evidence or Strike His Expert, 
Keith Harper, MAI 

12 PA02282-2348 

Reply in Support of the State’s MPSJ on Contract 
Claims  
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Prayer for Rescission 
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Rescission Claim Based on Trial Ruling  
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Supplemental Trial Brief Filed by Nassiri 8 PA01505-1525 
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WEDNESDAY, JULY 31, 2013, 10:32 A.M. 

1 MR. OLSEN: Eric Olsen for the Plaintiff. 

2 MR. COULTHARD: Morning, Your Honor, Bill Coulthard, Mona 

3 Kaveh and Amanda Kern on behalf of the State of Nevada and 

4 Nevada Department of Transportation. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. 

6 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, I can only assume their argument 

7 lS really, really long because they're coming after us. 

8 MR. COULTHARD: Your Honor, it is the State's motion --

9 Defendant's, NDOT's motion to dismiss -- and really has three 

10 parts. If you want me to try and tackle these issues, I'll be 

11 happy to. 

12 THE COURT: Okay. 

13 MR. COULTHARD: Your Honor, really our -- the three parts 

14 to the motion. First part, probably, we should deal with is 

15 the motion to quash service of process based upon it being 

16 untimely, and I would suggest, if the Courts rules upon that 

17 then that's dispositive, statutes provide -- the action should 

18 be dismissed without prejudice; that would end today's 

19 arguments. So if it's appropriate, I'll go there first. 

20 THE COURT: Okay. 

21 MR. COULTHARD: Your Honor, the -- Mr. Nassiri's 

22 Complaint was filed on November 30th, 2012. An Amended 

23 Complaint was filed on March 27th and that -- the original 

24 Complaint was not served, it was filed but not served. 

www.avtranz.com . (800) 257-0885 
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1 And the Amended Complaint was filed on March 27th, 

2 2013, and on March 28th, the day after, they served -- the 

3 Plaintiff served the director of the Nevada Department of 

4 Transportation, and they only served the director of NDOT. 

5 However, NRS 408.116 requlres that the Complaint 

6 must be personally served upon both the director and the chair 

7 of the Board of the Department of Transportation and/or, In 

8 the absence of the director or chair, then they may be served 

9 alternatively, upon the Secretary of State or one of the 

10 deputy directors. So, they were deficient In that they served 

11 only one of the parties as required under NRS 408. 

12 Additionally, 41.031, in an action against the State 

13 of Nevada, a copy of the Complaint must also be served upon 

14 the Attorney General, and they failed to serve, timely serve 

15 that upon the Attorney General. 

16 And so, essentially they served NDOT director and no 

17 one else within the 120 days. Shortly and the 120 days ran 

18 on April 1st, 2013 and they had failed to effectuate service. 

19 So Ms. Kern, on behalf of NDOT, sent a letter, I believe on 

20 April 12th, 12 days after the expiration of the 120 days, 

21 advising the Plaintiff that they had not properly served NDOT 

22 and citing the statutes that were applicable, that we just 

23 went through, saying you need to effectuate service. 

24 Again, we're after now, I believe, 16 days late, the 

25 Plaintiffs file an ex parte motion to enlarge the 120 days and 

www.avtranz.com . (800) 257-0885 
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1 it's clearly, under the rules, an untimely motion. And under 

2 the applicable case law we've cited, the Saavedra v. Sandoval 

3 action, we pointed out the deficiencies in that motion. 

4 Number one, it was an ex parte motion. They knew Ms. Kern was 

5 representing NDOT at that juncture and did not provide her 

6 with a copy of the ex parte motion. 

7 They had a telephonic conference. We have now seen 

8 the minutes of that hearing, and apparently your predecessor, 

9 Judge Allf, did rule upon that and ruled that the time to 

10 enlarge, the motion to enlarge the 120 days, was granted. 

11 However, I think what she did not do and believe the 

12 basis for our challenge, when we look at Saavedra v. Sandoval 

13 is, the Court -- the District Court needed to determine that 

14 there was a basis for allowing the untimely filing of the 

15 motion to enlarge and there are no findings. 

16 And there is a request to enlarge that timeframe but 

17 there are no specific findings that there was a basis for 

18 filing that motion to enlarge untimely, which is what the 

19 Court, what the Nevada Supreme Court says that is the prlmary 

20 consideration for the District Court. 

21 In enlarging it, they've got to consider whether 

22 there was a legitimate basis for filing that motion on an 

23 untimely basis and there was no, based upon the motion we've 

24 seen and the affidavit, no evidence to support the untimely 

25 basis. No finding that it was. 
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1 So you can't then go to the next step under Saavedra 

2 v. Sandoval. So I think that the Court skipped a step, it's 

3 an important step. And because of that, under the statutes, 

4 the case, service of process must be quashed and the motion 

5 should be and the Complaint should be dismissed without 

6 prej udice. 

7 So that's the first prong of our motion, Your Honor, 

8 and at this point, I guess I would defer to Mr. Olsen to 

9 address that --

10 THE COURT: Okay, Mr. Olsen, respond. 

11 MR. COULTHARD: -- because I think we need to get through 

12 the jurisdictional issues. 

13 THE COURT: Okay. Great. 

14 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, it's true that the State of 

15 Nevada, NDOT, was served within 120 days. It is also true 

16 that the AG and the governor, who's the director of the board 

17 that needs to be served, were not served. We -- the AG 

18 obviously had notice because Ms. Kern contacted us afterwards 

19 and said: You know, you haven't served the AG or the 

20 governor. 

21 She didn't specify, she said we had to serve them 

22 from the statute. We immediately did that and we also filed a 

23 motion to extend the time for service. Your Honor, that 

24 motion's been granted. An order was entered on July 23rd and 

25 I -- we haven't done a notice of entry yet. We just got it 
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1 last week, but the motion was granted. 

2 If counsel wants to file a motion to set aside that 

3 order, then they're going to have to do that. At this point, 

4 their argument for dismissal is moot based on 120 days serVlce 

5 because it's now been granted, service is proper, based on 

6 that order, you know, so it really is a moot issue. 

7 You know, we also well we can get into those 

8 lssues again if -- it's filed. If such a motion is filed. 

9 For now, we submit it on that. We think it should be --

10 THE COURT: Okay, well I -- as Mr. Coulthard cited to 

11 Saavedra Sandoval v. Wal-Mart, that's where the time has run. 

12 I mean there's Scrimmer or Scrimmer, however that's 

13 pronounced, and then this Saavedra Sandoval they're -- they 

14 kind of address slightly different aspects of 4(i). 

15 So, I what exactly has Judge, you know, the Court 

16 was transferred to this Court. What exactly did Judge Allf 

17 state in her order extending the time? 

18 MR. OLSEN: Well, the order -- it's true the order 

19 doesn't specify her findings with respect to the -- to the 

20 motion, Your Honor. 

21 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

22 MR. OLSEN: It just simply says: Motion to extend is 

23 granted. That was signed -- interestingly, it was signed on 

24 June 25th apparently, but the Court did not file it until July 

25 23rd. 
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1 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

2 MR. OLSEN: There's another lssue and that is if the --

3 at that point the Judge had made a determination. I don't 

4 recall exactly when they filed their preempt. It was after, 

5 you know, there was an lssue. It was after June 23rd. Well, 

6 she's made a determination on the record --

7 THE COURT: Right. 

8 MR. OLSEN: Is that a determination for -- that would 

9 preclude their preempt? That's a separate issue. Again, if 

10 they want to bring a motion to set aside the order we can then 

11 brief that issue as well. 

12 THE COURT: Because I think it has to be a contested 

13 ruling. I mean, I think 

14 MR. OLSEN: Well, now they're saylng it's contested. Now 

15 they're saying had they been given an opportunity to appear 

16 they would have contested it. By the way, it was sent -- it 

17 was served, not served, it was ex parte. Because even though 

18 we'd known of Ms. Kern's existence, because of negotiations 

19 over the last year and a half, no one had made an appearance 

20 In the case. 

21 THE COURT: Correct. 

22 MR. OLSEN: So if they were gOlng to appear I don't think 

23 they were gOlng to appear -- object. I mean if they --

24 someone doesn't appear, I don't think I'm obligated to send 

25 them notice so they can come In. 
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1 THE COURT: That's my point, lS that, I think that you 

2 can request ex parte to extend the time for serVlce. 

3 MR. OLSEN: Yes. 

4 THE COURT: But Mr. Coulthard's point is that there needs 

5 to be a finding, specific finding that says, as In this case, 

6 that there was good cause for granting an extension of time; 

7 that there was good cause also for the untimely motion to 

8 enlarge. 

9 MR. OLSEN: Yeah. 

10 THE COURT: I mean, they say, basically, the Court 

11 reached the right conclusion for the wrong for the wrong 

12 reason. And it's certainly appropriate to extend time but you 

13 have to like say so and --

14 MR. OLSEN: Well, Your Honor, I think --

15 THE COURT: So I just -- you know, what were the grounds 

16 cited were --

17 MR. OLSEN: -- a prevlew, I guess a prevlew of opposition 

18 to their motion would be, certainly we served the Department 

19 of Transportation. 

20 THE COURT: Right. 

21 MR. OLSEN: We served the State. We agree that other 

22 entities need to be served on the statute, however, the State 

23 of Nevada was aware of the claim. The Attorney General's 

24 office was aware of the Complaint. There's -- it was 

25 inadvertence that led to failure to serve the other two 
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1 branches of the State government, however, there's certainly 

2 no prejudice to the State. I think the -- Judge Allf saw 

3 that, certainly. She didn't make a finding, but that's a 

4 preview of what our response lS. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. Thanks. 

6 MR. COULTHARD: Your Honor, and I should have probably 

7 mentioned the history on the order. Of course it wasn't a 

8 contested hearing because despite the fact that Ms. Kern, on 

9 behalf of NDOT, had sent a letter to the opposing counsel's 

10 law firm saying she was involved. They didn't serve us with a 

11 copy. They didn't serve Ms. Kern with a copy of the motion 

12 so, it was an ex parte motion and we did not -- it was not 

13 contested. 

14 THE COURT: Right and they've done away with the special 

15 appearance kind of thing so 

16 MR. COULTHARD: Right. 

17 THE COURT: once you appear, you appear. So she's not 

18 been involved here in appearance. 

19 MR. COULTHARD: Exactly, Your Honor. And then no order 

20 was entered. 

21 THE COURT: Right. 

22 MR. COULTHARD: We filed our motion to quash serVlce of 

23 process, and I believe that motion, the date of filing that 

24 was the 24th of this -- of June, June 24th, 2013 when we 

25 highlight this issue 
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1 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

2 MR. COULTHARD: -- that there's been no order. And that 

3 In our motion to quash then -- and we had, at that point, 

4 filed a preemptory challenge and the case had been transferred 

5 to Your Honor. 

6 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

7 MR. COULTHARD: Then Plaintiff's Counsel immediately sent 

8 a letter over to Your Honor enclosing a copy of the order 

9 saylng: Oh, we know what happened with it. He thinks he 

10 submitted it to a prlor department, but it never gotten 

11 entered so, we hadn't seen it. 

12 Then on -- and on the following day, we sent a 

13 letter to Your Honor saylng -- and apparently you executed it, 

14 I believe, that day. 

15 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

16 MR. COULTHARD: I believe that letter came over, I've got 

17 a copy of it, on June 25th, 2013. The following day we object 

18 and ask Your Honor, in light of our motion to quash, to hold 

19 off signing the letter, but I think, based upon the email 

20 correspondence and the execution date of the order, you signed 

21 it on the 25th. You didn't see our letter till the 26th. So 

22 it's a bit of which came first, the chicken or the egg. 

23 THE COURT: Right. 

24 MR. COULTHARD: You know, importantly, they've admitted 

25 they haven't complied with the statute to serve within 120 
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1 days as required. They served one of the three parties. They 

2 then don't have the required basis under the Saavedra case 

3 which requires them to provide a basis for why their motion to 

4 enlarge is untimely filed. 

5 THE COURT: Right. 

6 MR. COULTHARD: We know it was untimely filed. The order 

7 doesn't address it. There are no specific findings. I didn't 

8 participate in that -- no one from our -- the Defense side 

9 participated in the telephone conversation. We don't know 

10 what was presented other than the motion but, the order 

11 actually says: The failure of any party to file a timely 

12 opposition thereto, the Court finds good cause, as follows, 

13 that the motion should be granted. 

14 So there's no specific findings as required by 

15 Saavedra and we think it's a basis now mandated by the Nevada 

16 Supreme Court that the Complaint needs to be dismissed without 

17 prejudice. So and until they -- until that issue's addressed, 

18 Your Honor, which I think there is appropriate basis to 

19 dismiss it, it should be dismissed. Thank Your Honor. If you 

20 have any questions. 

21 THE COURT: All right. Well, the timing of this case is, 

22 case was filed November 30th, 2012. There are -- there's been 

23 an Amended Complaint. This is where we get In this whole 

24 problem of, as I told the other gentleman: You've got an 

25 Amended Complaint, you've got to serve that Complaint. 
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1 MR. OLSEN: That is what we served, Your Honor. 

2 MR. COULTHARD: They did serve that Amended Complaint. 

3 THE COURT: And so -- and so -- right, so --

4 MR. OLSEN: And Your Honor, if I may ask that for one 

5 other -- the reason that the Complaint was not served 

6 initially -- in fact, the reason I filed earlier was that for 

7 an extended period of time, we were in negotiations with the 

8 State and --

9 THE COURT: Right. So here's my point, Mr. Olsen. 

10 MR. OLSEN: Yes. 

11 THE COURT: Is that, there's a new Complaint on file and 

12 so, the new Complaint gets filed and then there's an affidavit 

13 of service as to, I guess two parties, and compare -- and 

14 along with that a motion to extend service. So I guess my 

15 question, Mr. Coulthard, lS they filed an Amended Complaint. 

16 Does that start the time over? I mean as I, you know, argued 

17 with the other gentleman there, the pro se gentleman that, you 

18 know, you filed an Amended Complaint, you got to serve that. 

19 So 

20 MR. COULTHARD: It does not, under my reading of NRCP 4. 

21 And I think that Plaintiff's Counsel has acknowledged that 

22 they did not effectuate service within the requisite 120 days. 

23 THE COURT: Okay. 

24 MR. COULTHARD: That 120 days begins upon the initial 

25 filing of the original Complaint --
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1 THE COURT: Initial filing of the Complaint. 

2 MR. COULTHARD: -- and filing an Amended Complaint does 

3 not glve you --

4 THE COURT: Give you an additional 20 days. 

5 MR. COULTHARD: -- an additional 120 days. 

6 THE COURT: But you got to serve the Amended Complaint 

7 and they did serve the Amended Complaint on a couple of 

8 parties, just not everybody that's required by statute. 

9 MR. COULTHARD: Correct. 

10 THE COURT: Okay. 

11 MR. COULTHARD: And I think they did that on the final 

12 day, 120 days, maybe 119 days. 

13 THE COURT: Yeah, the 29th. 

14 MR. COULTHARD: But they served a -- they partially 

15 served the Amended Complaint on -- in a timely manner. 

16 THE COURT: Right. And then -- then they 

17 MR. COULTHARD: But our position is, that's not effective 

18 service under the requisite two statutes we cited. 

19 THE COURT: Statutory. That it says -- exactly to serve. 

20 So, then they filed their motion to extend on the 17th. 

21 MR. COULTHARD: Admittedly 12 days late. 

22 THE COURT: Correct, 12 days late. So -- and --

23 MR. COULTHARD: 16, excuse me. 

24 THE COURT: And what the Complaint says lS, basically, ln 

25 the motion it says, basically, that they filed on November 
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1 12th in order to preserve the cause of action in the midst of 

2 settlement negotiations and considerations with the State 

3 Board of Examiners so, they partially served it. And after 

4 they extended 120 days, the Attorney General gave Plaintiffs 

5 notion they were required to serve certain individuals who 

6 were to receive service under the Nevada Revised Statutes. So 

7 then, immediately, the Plaintiff files this motion to extend. 

8 Now, I would agree with you that the order doesn't 

9 set forth grounds which the Saavedra Sandoval case says you're 

10 supposed to do, and I don't know what happened in this whole 

11 thing about the order not getting signed in Judge Allf's 

12 department before it came to me; I don't know. But -- and the 

13 -- order they submitted arguably doesn't set forth the grounds 

14 and the minute order just says, basically, it's unopposed, 

15 we're granting it. 

16 But some more language might have been appropriate 

17 under Saavedra Sandoval because it was filed after the 120 

18 days and you're required to show good cause. They don't give 

19 you quite as much information as Scrimmer does as to what good 

20 cause lS, but I always refer back to that for the laundry list 

21 of factors that they give us there as to what establishes good 

22 cause. 

23 And, as I look at the pleading that was filed by Mr. 

24 Olsen's office, you know, they filed it timely. They were 

25 engaged in negotiations, it didn't come to fruition, they were 
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1 runnlng out of time, they amended their Complaint, attempted 

2 to serve it and did it wrong. I will concede to you, Mr. 

3 Coulthard, it's correct, and I don't think they argue that 

4 they didn't do it wrong. They're very clear that Ms. Kern lS 

5 the one who put them on notice of what they had to do to 

6 perfect serVlce. 

7 At that point, then, they request an extension of 

8 time, immediately request an extension of time to serve. I 

9 grant you the order doesn't lay all that out but I think that 

10 under Scrimmer, those are factors that the Court can consider 

11 and say: Yes, there's good cause to file this and to extend 

12 time -- there's -- and the Court understands the cause for why 

13 it was -- why time was not requested earlier because they 

14 appeared to have believed they served it properly. 

15 The service defect was pointed out to them by Ms. 

16 Kerns. They immediately requested additional time in which to 

17 perfect their service. 

18 I agree, it could all have been laid out more 

19 clearly and probably should have been. But I think that 

20 between what Saavedra Sandoval tells us you need to do I 

21 think they met the Saavedra Sandoval standard in their motion. 

22 I would concede to you that the minute order and the new order 

23 that this Court ultimately signed, arguably, doesn't lay it 

24 all out but, I think that there is enough there in the record 

25 to find that there was good cause for filing the motion to 
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1 extend time for serVlce, late. 

2 They attempted to serve it prlor to the expiration 

3 of the time for serVlce, 120 days, they attempted -- they 

4 didn't complete it. And it is -- I agree it's a defect in 

5 service, however, they immediately, upon learning of it, 

6 requested the additional time and the Court granted it. 

7 The facts could have been a little bit more clear, 

8 the order should have been a little bit more clear, but with 

9 this confusion about transferring between departments and 

10 somehow having lost that order, the original order, the record 

11 has not been made clear. 

12 So, I'm gOlng to deny the motion to dismiss for 

13 failure to serve on the grounds that I find that adequate 

14 grounds were laid out in the motion to extend service for a 

15 late request under Saavedra Sandoval versus Wal-Mart. 

16 And unfortunately, the order wasn't clear. And 

17 Slnce this is a transferred case, when I signed the order, I 

18 signed an order that didn't lay it all out. I would like to 

19 think that maybe I would have put a little bit more detail in 

20 the order had it been my original order. So, apologize for 

21 that. I don't think that it has anything to do with the 

22 preempt because it wasn't opposed. So 

23 MR. COULTHARD: Understood so --

24 THE COURT: the preempt transferred it to this Court. 

25 So now we're going forward on the next lssue. 
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1 MR. COULTHARD: Understood, Your Honor. Thank you and I 

2 guess I would just want to go forward with the understanding 

3 on the record that I'm not walvlng my rights to challenge 

4 jurisdictional--

5 THE COURT: I understand. 

6 MR. COULTHARD: -- lssues despite movlng forward --

7 THE COURT: I understand. 

8 MR. COULTHARD: -- to continue to --

9 THE COURT: Absolutely. 

10 MR. COULTHARD: -- pursue this lssue with the State so 

11 desires. 

12 THE COURT: And as Mr. Olsen indicated, I mean, you may 

13 even have the right to request reconsideration of it; I don't 

14 know. There's all sorts of weird procedural issues given the 

15 procedural history of this thing and the transfer and the 

16 order getting signed late. Sorry it messed up the record. 

17 MR. COULTHARD: No, we understand. These things happen. 

18 There is one bit of language in the order granting the motion 

19 to enlarge time that suggests that there be no opposition 

20 thereto. 

21 THE COURT: Right. 

22 MR. COULTHARD: And I think it's important for the 

23 record, there's no opposition. It was not contested --

24 THE COURT: Correct. 

25 MR. COULTHARD: because we were never served nor aware 
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1 of it until they filed their opposition and had the June 26th 

2 order 

3 THE COURT: Yeah. 

4 MR. COULTHARD: entered by your Court so. 

5 THE COURT: Would not have even been appropriate at that 

6 point for Ms. Kern to have entered an appearance. She was not 

7 gOlng to volunteer an appearance --

8 MR. COULTHARD: Thank you, Your Honor, I 

9 THE COURT: simply by opposing it so, that's 

10 understood. 

11 MR. COULTHARD: We understand the Court's ruling. I 

12 think maybe a real quick one is, probably, and straightforward 

13 is, the third prong of our motion was motion to strike 

14 punitive damages asserted by the Plaintiff as against the 

15 State. NDOT's a State agency, NRS 41.0351 limits awards 

16 against a State agency. It specifically provides an -- or it 

17 may not include any amount as exemplary --

18 THE COURT: Yeah. 

19 MR. COULTHARD: or punitive damages. Plaintiff 

20 Nassiri's Complaint on page 16, in the prayer, seeks punitive 

21 damages to the extent 

22 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, we'll concede that. 

23 MR. COULTHARD: Thank you. 

24 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you, granted. 

25 MR. COULTHARD: They seem to do that --
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1 MR. OLSEN: I'm looking for a gap. 

2 MR. COULTHARD: I thought that was -- I was rushing --

3 THE COURT: That's granted. 

4 MR. COULTHARD: through that one. 

5 THE COURT: Okay, that's an easy one, granted. 

6 MR. COULTHARD: Okay. So Your Honor, the other one lS 

7 THE COURT: Mean the substantive one. 

8 MR. COULTHARD: -- pretty lengthy and I know you've been 

9 on the bench for some time. If you need a break or you want 

10 me to just roll right into this. 

11 THE COURT: Ladies? Maybe we'll take a break after you 

12 guys are done because we still have one more thing then we 

13 have our 10:30, then we have our 1:30. 

14 MR. COULTHARD: Okay. 

15 THE COURT: It's that kind of day. 

16 MR. COULTHARD: I think just to -- if I can just go 

17 and I do apologize to everyone in the courtroom and Your 

18 Honor, and thank you for your patience but, obviously there's 

19 a lot in this, a lot of Complaint --

20 THE COURT: Right. 

21 MR. COULTHARD: and some weighty issues that we need 

22 to deal with. But first, if I could go to the ELMO and just 

23 

24 THE COURT: Yeah. 

25 MR. COULTHARD: familiarize the Court a little bit 
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1 with the subject property. I'm not sure if it's comlng on. 

2 THE COURT: There it goes. 

3 MR. COULTHARD: So what I'm depicting and showing you 

4 just to familiarize you a little bit with the area that we're 

5 talking about. 

6 THE COURT: Why lS it black? 

7 MR. COULTHARD: I have a set of these for you. And 

8 actually 

9 THE CLERK: I think it's still searching. 

10 THE COURT: Huh? Doesn't seem to be connected to the tv. 

11 MR. COULTHARD: Your Honor, I did bring some extra copies 

12 if it's appropriate. 

13 THE COURT: Okay, sure. 

14 MR. COULTHARD: And I can walk you through --

15 THE COURT: Yeah, we're having some technical 

16 difficulties. 

17 MR. COULTHARD: If I may approach, Your Honor? 

18 THE COURT: Thank you. 

19 MR. COULTHARD: Just to -- maybe this isn't even on --

20 I'm 

21 THE BAILIFF: It's on. 

22 MR. COULTHARD: It lS on. 

23 THE BAILIFF: Yes. 

24 THE COURT: I think it must be a connection between the 

25 television and the ELMO, somehow they're not connecting. 
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1 MR. COULTHARD: So -- well maybe I just walk you through 

2 these--

3 THE COURT: Okay. 

4 MR. COULTHARD: real quick --

5 THE COURT: Thanks. 

6 MR. COULTHARD: -- then, Judge. 

7 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

8 MR. COULTHARD: The first photo which has, In highlighted 

9 the -- in red that -- that is well you see on 1-15 and 

10 then you have Blue Diamond, just to put this property in 

11 reference to the area it's located within. 

12 And what's highlighted In the red lS the exchange 

13 property that was -- that really lS the subject underlying 23 

14 acres that's the subject of this lawsuit. 

15 The next page, which is the page that has the green 

16 property. 

17 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

18 MR. COULTHARD: This shows both the -- Nassiri acquired 

19 the property from NDOT, the 24 acres -- I'm still hoping it'll 

20 come up but -- and the adjacent property that he owned 

21 previously, and it really shows the assembled size of the 

22 acreage. 

23 Again, you've got the Blue Diamond access and 1-15. 

24 This property, this picture actually depicts the roadway 

25 configuration with the Blue Diamond flyover as presently 
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1 constructed, as does the prlor photo shows that the flyover, 

2 that there's much complaining about in the Complaint. 

3 And then, finally, we have a page of the 

4 environmental assessment from October of 2008. And as we go 

5 through these, I guess the reason I'm showing you the second 

6 one with the green that shows the assembled property, as you 

7 know, through the pleadings and the Complaint, there's a lot 

8 of noise by the Plaintiff about this overcharging by a 46 

9 percent assemblage value. 

10 Well, that's true, and when we look at the Kent 

11 appraisal that's attached to the Complaint, he actually values 

12 it two ways: He values this pork chop piece of property that 

13 NDOT owned that Nassiri acquired as a standalone parcel, but 

14 he then also values it as an assemblage value, which clearly, 

15 assembling the property has a greater value. 

16 And this 46 percent assemblage value lS a bit of a 

17 red herring and nOlse, and I don't want to get ahead of myself 

18 

19 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

20 MR. COULTHARD: -- but that's clearly one of their big 

21 allegations. And I think that map actually shows he did 

22 assemble it consistent with the appraisal. 

23 And so, finally, this October 2008 exhibit, this lS 

24 actually a page and they complain a lot about the 

25 misrepresentations and intentional misrepresentations by NDOT 
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1 by and through Las Vegas Paving. Well, this lS a color copy 

2 of the map that was actually attached to the Las Vegas 

3 Paving/Nassiri ground lease. And you know --

4 THE COURT: That's the one --

5 MR. COULTHARD: they make a lot of nOlse about, that 

6 no flyover was disclosed, and this Las Vegas Paving 

7 representation and attachment to their ground lease, was fraud 

8 by NDOT, by my client. When, In fact, you look at the color 

9 exhibit, this build alternative number -- this is actually 

10 from Figure 10-F from the October 28th environmental 

11 assessment study for this project. 

12 It actually shows the flyover for eastbound traffic 

13 on Blue Diamond. Yet, I would acknowledge it's in a different 

14 location. But again, much noise about a failure to disclose 

15 this flyover when, in fact, their own documents which lS, 

16 agaln -- this is attached, I believe, as Exhibit 5 to the 

17 Complaint. This is one of their own exhibits, shows there lS 

18 a flyover so, I wanted to point that out. 

19 With that backdrop, Your Honor, agaln, I think it's 

20 important that the Court understand that this entire 1-15 and 

21 Blue Diamond interchange was a design build project, l.e., as 

22 the contractors moved forward through this project, there 

23 could be engineering modifications to save costs. 

24 And so, the fact that this was noticed as a design 

25 build and was, In fact, a design build, clearly should come as 
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1 no surprlse and certainly doesn't submit -- doesn't support 

2 the fraud and intentional misrepresentation claims. 

3 With that backdrop, we'll get into the meat of the 

4 motion to dismiss. 

5 THE COURT: Okay. 

6 MR. COULTHARD: There's actually SlX claims for relief, 

7 inverse condemnation, breach of contract, contractual breach 

8 of implied covenant of good faith, tortious breach of implied 

9 covenant in good faith, negligent misrepresentation and 

10 intentional misrepresentation. 

11 We outline, on our moving papers, the bases for our 

12 12(b) (5) motion and the standards. But clearly. this Court 

13 can consider documents attached to the Complaint, documents 

14 incorporated by reference in the Complaint and also other 

15 matters of judicial notice without converting the present 

16 motion today into a summary judgment. So, I think the 

17 standard we're operating under is a motion to dismiss. 

18 And we recognize that that is a weighty burden on 

19 the State to come in and show that they can't plead any set of 

20 operative facts to substantiate these -- the basis of these 

21 claims, and we think we've done it. 

22 And we've done it on multiple grounds for each of 

23 the claims and multiple independent grounds, Your Honor. And 

24 I will -- I will say that it is a little bit difficult to work 

25 through these claims and they were challenging. It was a 
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1 challenging opposition to work through because of, I think, 

2 some very crafty pleadings by a very good law firm by very 

3 good attorneys that recognized, I believe, that they had real 

4 problems with these -- this Plaintiff's allegations. 

5 And so, I think when we try and clear it up and look 

6 at the law on this, and through their Complaint and then 

7 through their opposition, they muddied up and make it 

8 difficult for this Court. And which, again, I apologize to 

9 everyone who's here but, as a result, we've got to work 

10 through some of these lssues. 

11 I think the first basis of -- and actually In an 

12 effort to assist the Court we have prepared 

13 THE COURT: Exhibit 3? 

14 MR. COULTHARD: -- and I'll provide a copy to counsel, a 

15 summary, which really addresses each of the claims. If I may 

16 approach. 

17 THE COURT: Sure. 

18 MR. COULTHARD: I brought one for Your Honor, and I'll 

19 provide one to your law clerk which I think will help simplify 

20 and streamline the positions we're asserting. And really what 

21 we've got here on this chart, and I don't know if we're up and 

22 rolling on the ELMO but --

23 THE COURT: He's working on it. 

24 MR. COULTHARD: -- I'll just explain, really, we've got 

25 our -- each of the claims broken out, and then, under each of 

www.avtranz.com . (800) 257-0885 

PA00180



26 

1 the categories, each of the columns, we outline the basis for 

2 the motions to dismiss, and when you work through all of these 

3 I think what is left and should survive this -- in fact, we 

4 don't even try and challenge this portion of the inverse 

5 condemnation claim, is their allegation that this Blue Diamond 

6 interchange somehow impacted the access to the Nassiri site 

7 and therefore they're entitled to inverse condemnation 

8 damages. That is, I think, requires factual determinations 

9 that that is not part of our claim. 

10 So, I guess there is a portion of the lnverse 

11 condemnation claim we're not seeking to dismiss in its 

12 entirety dealing with the access. But really, and I think the 

13 general categories, excuse me, of our failure -- of our motion 

14 of failure to state a claim: Number one, deal with the 

15 contractual waivers under the settlement agreement. 

16 Number two, the fact that Nassiri's tort claims are 

17 barred under NRS 41.032, because we have clear case law we've 

18 cited in our briefs that the decision by NDOT to build and 

19 expand and the decisions related to the configuration of the 

20 roadways is a discretionary function --

21 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

22 MR. COULTHARD: and NRS 41.032 shields the State for 

23 discretionary functions versus operation functions 

24 THE COURT: Tort liability. 

25 MR. COULTHARD: and I don't believe that's been 
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1 disputed. 

2 THE COURT: For tort liability. 

3 MR. COULTHARD: For tort liability, yes. 

4 We've also addressed the statute of limitations In 

5 here and then, finally, really drilled down into the 

6 insufficiency of the pleadings. 

7 So, I think probably the best starting place is the 

8 breach of contract claim, the second claim. These claims 

9 really center around NDOT's sale of the exchange property and 

10 NDOT's construction of the 1-15 Blue Diamond overpass, and 

11 this is really, I think, the primary defense to those claims 

12 to both the breach of contract, contractual breach of implied 

13 covenant and likewise, the tortious breach of implied 

14 covenant. We turn to the settlement agreement and release of 

15 all claims. And this lS one where -- oh, I guess -- am I up 

16 and runnlng with the ELMO? 

17 THE CLERK: It still lS not working. 

18 MR. COULTHARD: Okay. And it lS attached and I'm not 

19 sure I did bring Your Honor -- oh, I guess I did bring an 

20 actual separate copy of that just for convenience of the 

21 Court. 

22 THE COURT: Thank you for being prepared, Mr. Coulthard. 

23 MR. COULTHARD: And I think it's been attached to -- it's 

24 both attached to the Complaint and attached to the opposition. 

25 But, I mean I think the title, settlement agreement, release 
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1 of all claims. 

2 THE COURT: Yeah, I got it. 

3 MR. COULTHARD: Now this arose out of the separate plece 

4 of property on the other side of 1-15 where there was a 

5 condemnation action by NDOT. 

6 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

7 MR. COULTHARD: And through that process they then did a 

8 settlement agreement that -- whereby Nassiri indicated his 

9 desire to acquire this pork chop exchange property and that's 

10 defined in the settlement agreement. 

11 But I think probably one of the best starting places 

12 to evaluate the settlement is, the settlement agreement and 

13 releases is, through the acknowledgments under paragraph 2.19 

14 when, you know, they acknowledge, under subsection 2, that the 

15 releases contained herein extend and apply to any -- and also 

16 cover and include all unknown, unforeseen, unsuspected, 

17 unanticipated injuries, promises, claims, losses, damages, et 

18 cetera. 

19 That no promlses or inducements have been offered 

20 except as herein set forth. That this settlement is good 

21 faith and is equitable. The agreements executed without 

22 reliance upon any statement or representation of any party and 

23 on and on and on. 

24 And actually, even specifically address some of the 

25 third party claims that Plaintiff Nassiri is suing the State 
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1 for, both the Chambers litigation and related third party 

2 claims surrounding title, he acknowledges those. 

3 So there, you know, I would encourage the Court to 

4 -- and I won't read them all. The acknowledgments acknowledge 

5 they had independent counsel, they acknowledge this was an 

6 arm's length negotiated settlement agreement. There are 

7 mutual releases under -- and importantly I emphasize mutual. 

8 It's not just Plaintiff Nassiri releasing it, it's NDOT was --

9 had negotiated and provided releases that ran in favor of the 

10 Plaintiff. 

11 But the release under 2.09 is very broad. Nassiri 

12 hereby releases and forever discharges the lawsuit and any 

13 matters asserted therein or which could have been asserted 

14 therein or its subject matter. 

15 And then it goes on, and I won't read it all, but 

16 subsection 2 talks about the physical condition of the 

17 exchange property as of the execution date or matters 

18 affecting title or claims thereto. 

19 Again, the Chambers Third Party Claim specifically 

20 referenced in other places, but that clearly was actually in 

21 the title policy as an accepted -- exception, an acknowledged 

22 exception. So they had notice of that despite what they tell 

23 you now In their opposition. 

24 And the other claims or the Krolecki claims for 

25 about seven million dollars. Well those group of claimants 
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1 were Plaintiff Nassiri's partners that he had a handshake deal 

2 with to share in ownership of this property they were 

3 acqulrlng. He acquired it himself and did the end run on his 

4 partners and they sued him. And they sued him and he settled 

5 for seven million dollars, and now he wants the State to come 

6 back and indemnify him or pay those funds as part of his 

7 damage claim despite the fact he's released claims for Third 

8 Party Claims related to title. 

9 I think importantly, the quitclaim deed is also 

10 mentioned in the settlement agreement. That quitclaim deed 

11 that, whereby, Nassiri agreed with his Counsel, knowingly, in 

12 an arm's length negotiation and settlement agreement that he 

13 was accepted -- would accept the property without warranty as 

14 lS, where is, and with all faults. Now that references the 

15 quit claim deed. 

16 And he acknowledges, it goes on, Nassiri 

17 acknowledges that he is aware of claims by Carolyn Ann 

18 Chambers, part of the Third Party Claim he's suing us for now, 

19 for breach of contract, or her representatives relating to an 

20 alleged reversionary interest or other rights relating to the 

21 exchange property. It's defined as the Chamber claims. 

22 And he has performed his own investigation of the 

23 Chamber claims, and based upon said investigation accepts the 

24 exchange property subject to any claims of Chambers, her 

25 asslgns or successors. That's referenced several places 
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1 throughout. 

2 Importantly -- so we've got these releases which I 

3 believe, and under this chart, deal with the second claim with 

4 all the breach of contract claims; he's released those claims. 

5 And -- but importantly, not only do you have this release, 

6 Your Honor, we've got the language in the quitclaim deed which 

7 is, I guess, typical of a quitclaim and that's Exhibit B to 

8 their -- to our opposition. I think it was also attached to 

9 their motion. 

10 But that language -- grantee accepts the property as 

11 lS, where is and with all faults including, but not limited 

12 to, et cetera, et cetera. But he then goes on specifically 

13 referencing the Chamber claims including, but not limited to, 

14 claims for attorneys' fees and costs relating ln any way to 

15 claims made with respect to the property by Carolyn Ann 

16 Chambers. Again, he's released that claim as he has with all 

17 other Third Party Claims. 

18 But there's some important language in this 

19 quitclaim deed that I think bear on other claims, particularly 

20 this whole claim about the -- now what is this implied 

21 easement or easement of visibility that he's suing under the 

22 indemnification claim. He says that we've given him that. 

23 But the very last sentence in the acceptance of 

24 property as is/where is states: Grantors make no warranty, 

25 express or implied, of any kind, with respect to any matter 
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1 affecting the property. I think that ends the visibility 

2 inquiry, that combined with the Provasco Supreme Court case 

3 that we've cited addressed that. 

4 And I did put together, agaln, and I will provide 

5 counsel with a copy of it which I -- and if I may provide one 

6 to Your Honor and the Court. 

7 THE COURT: Certainly. 

8 MR. COULTHARD: And this lS really just crypt notes of 

9 the 

10 THE COURT: Thank you. 

11 MR. COULTHARD: -- settlement agreement and releases of 

12 all claims I've worked through. I haven't gone through all of 

13 them. We highlighted most of them but for the ease of the 

14 Court, we think these are all applicable to their first 

15 through fourth claims for relief. So, he's expressly waived 

16 those claims. 

17 And it's pretty clear to me, when you take a look at 

18 those, that those breach of contract claims have to go away; 

19 he's released them. And that through -- and through the 

20 quitclaim deed's released them. 

21 Now there's a lot of complaints about the flyover 

22 and the change related to the flyover and this easement, this 

23 visual easement. In fact, that's the basis of their inverse 

24 condemnation claim. Importantly, in the settlement agreement 

25 there's an integration clause. We state there are no 
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1 warranties and there's no duty, whatsoever, In the settlement 

2 agreement and release which is the contract they're sUlng 

3 under that they have pointed to that support, their breach of 

4 contract claim. 

5 We have said: Tell us, you know, tell us where 

6 there's a duty. In our motion, there's no duty and absent a 

7 duty to glve you visibility, absent a duty to not build this 

8 flyover, there can't be a breach of contract, and it's very 

9 clearly given those up and they can't provide Your Honor with 

10 any duties, which likewise, I think signals the end of their 

11 breach of contract claims. They have not given us a duty. 

12 There can be no breach of contract without a duty. 

13 Under their basis of the breach of contract lS that 

14 they paid too much. That we -- that NDOT failed to disclose 

15 the Gary Kent appraisal which is attached to their Complaint 

16 at the time they negotiated the sale of the exchange property. 

17 But they're pretty crafty with this, Judge, because they say, 

18 In a couple of places In their motion -- I had to go back and 

19 take a good hard look at it. 

20 They say: Well, we breached Federal and State law 

21 by not providing an appraisal when we did this deal. Well, 

22 you know, when you take a good hard look at that there is no 

23 duty of a seller, be it NDOT or any other seller, to provide 

24 an appraisal they have when they're selling property. There 

25 just flat out isn't. 
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1 But what they're trying to do lS, I think, confuse 

2 the Court. There is a duty when you're a condemning agency on 

3 the other side of 1-15, there is a duty to provide an 

4 appraisal to support their motion for immediate occupancy 

5 which NDOT did, in fact, file with the Court in the prior 

6 litigation. So they're muddying the waters there, Judge. 

7 There is absolutely no duty by -- on any seller who 

8 has an appraisal to provide that appraisal to a buyer. It's 

9 not In the settlement agreement and they can't point to 

10 anything and they haven't. They agaln try to confuse the 

11 Court, confuse the issues about the condemnation property, 

12 but that is not what we're talking about here. 

13 So, when they -- when they tell you that we had a 

14 duty on this to not charge this -- what they refer to as the 

15 46 percent overage --

16 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

17 MR. COULTHARD: -- or assemblage plece, take a look at 

18 Exhibit 1 to the Gary Kent appraisal. It is clear that this 

19 assemblage valuation, they paid just a little over that, not 

20 46 percent. So they're being disingenuous with that, Judge. 

21 But again, at the end of the day there is no duty In an arm's 

22 length transaction. We didn't have an obligation to provide 

23 that and they can't sue you after the fact, a number of years 

24 after the fact, seven years after the fact because they're 

25 unhappy with the purchase price they paid. 
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1 It's absurd, Your Honor, and I would suggest that 

2 and Your Honor's very familiar with it, the reality of the 

3 economlC situation and the related property values in this 

4 valley which we've spent a lot of time in other cases argulng 

5 about, I think is what we're dealing with here, and an unhappy 

6 buyer faced with a major devaluation In property who looks to 

7 strap the State with his bad decisions. 

8 Your Honor, the breach of contract claims all are 

9 time barred. We cite NRS 11.190 (1) (b), six year statute of 

10 limitations; it's applicable. We entered into the contract In 

11 April of 2005. I believe there was one amendment in June of 

12 2005; SlX years to sue us for that under breach of contract, 

13 no duty, time barred, end of story. And -- oh, and the 

14 release. 

15 So if you look through -- those are the basis for 

16 each of those breach of contract claims -- waived his right 

17 under the express language of the settlement agreement and 

18 quitclaim deeds. There are no duties alleged or that support 

19 their claims. And finally, they're time barred under NRS 

20 11.190(1)(b). 

21 The tortious breach of contract, I think, agaln, I 

22 think lS pretty clear. He waived his right to bring these 

23 under the settlement agreement under -- let me just get to my 

24 notes, Judge, so I can see where I am. Okay, so tortious 

25 breach of implied covenant of good faith, I think that they 
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1 have a heightened pleading standard. The Court well knows 

2 there's a special element of reliance where fiduciary duty 

3 exists between the parties. 

4 I think we've cited some case law that, you know, 

5 it's limited to rare and exceptional cases under K-Mart v. 

6 Ponzak. I think special relationships include 

7 insurers/insureds, partners and partnerships, 

8 franchisees/franchisors, maybe lenders and mortgagors, but in 

9 situations where a vastly superior bargaining power won over 

10 the other, and they simply cited no case law that support, In 

11 this arm's length transaction, where both parties are 

12 sophisticated. 

13 Mr. Nassiri lS a sophisticated landowner/real estate 

14 developer who had Counsel, Mr. Chapman, who approved this 

15 whole deal, I just don't think that, In fact, when you look at 

16 the acknowledgments, that this was an arm's length 

17 transaction, specifically the acknowledgments in the 

18 settlement agreement I went through earlier that say, you 

19 know, it's mutually negotiated. No one's acting under duress. 

20 They understood it and it's signed by their lawyers. 

21 Clearly, no special relationship and superior bargaining 

22 required to show the special relationship. So, again, that 

23 I think that claim clearly has been -- should be dismissed by 

24 Your Honor. 

25 And we also cited a couple of cases, both General 
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1 Builders, Inc. and Long v. Town which Nevada Supreme Court 

2 cases that say, generally, there is no fiduciary obligations 

3 that exist between a buyer and a seller of property. It 

4 denied, under General Builders, denied tort liability where, 

5 as here, agreements have been heavily negotiated and where the 

6 aggrieved party is a sophisticated businessman. So that tort 

7 should go away. 

8 Fifth claim for relief: Negligent 

9 Misrepresentation. You know, I think when you look at it, I 

10 guess I'll start with the easier one, it's time barred, Your 

11 Honor. Their allegation is that NDOT was required to provide 

12 this appraisal they had of the pork chop exchange property 

13 and that it was required to disclose any and all plans to 

14 construct Blue Diamond, this Blue Diamond flyover. That's the 

15 basis of their both their negligent misrepresentation and 

16 their intentional misrepresentation. 

17 Well, you entered into the contract in April of 

18 2005, it's a three year statute of limitations, NRS 11.190. 

19 That three year statute runs well before the filing of this 

20 Complaint in November of 2012. But even if you give them the 

21 benefit of the doubt of the discovery rule, which essentially 

22 says that the statute begins to run when the date of discovery 

23 of facts, which is in the exercise of proper diligence, would 

24 have enabled the Plaintiff to learn of the fraud, which lS 

25 Howard v. Howard, Nassiri admits, In his Complaint, on 
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1 paragraph 16 that he obtained the appraisal In late 2008. 

2 That's paragraph 16. He admits he got that appraisal. 

3 And that's the basis of his fraud claim lS, you 

4 didn't tell me how much it was that this property was worth. 

5 So, giving him the benefit of a doubt then, that Complaint --

6 that three years would have tolled In late 2011. He alleges 

7 late 2008, three years, late 2011. Complaint was not filed 

8 until November of 2012, four years later, a year late. 

9 It's not properly plead. We've argued this in our 

10 pleadings, but they need to show the false information -- that 

11 false information was provided at the time that we entered 

12 into the contract and that any resulting loss was caused by 

13 justifiable reliance on that information. They don't plead 

14 that, and they haven't glven any explanation that's legitimate 

15 in their opposition. 

16 So, clearly, absent an allegation that we provided 

17 false information when we entered into the settlement 

18 agreement there can be no negligent misrepresentation. Again, 

19 we -- it kind of comes back to duty too. We didn't have a 

20 duty to disclose this appraisal. Nassiri could have gone out 

21 and gotten his own appraisal. In fact, I think that's what 

22 the what he did. 

23 Intentional misrepresentation. I think the same 

24 argument although, I think it's a much -- it's a heightened 

25 pleading requirement under NRCP 9(b), they've got to plead 
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1 specific circumstances of the alleged fraud and they must be 

2 detailed. Our case law is clear, they've got to tell you the 

3 identity of the speaker, the substance of the statement, when 

4 the statement was made and the recipient of the statement, 

5 and that's Brown v. Keller, Nevada Supreme Court case. 

6 And they failed to properly plead those allegations 

7 because I would submit they don't exist. But because, again, 

8 a motion to dismiss -- they have failed to plead, and likewise 

9 it's a three year statute of limitation. They acknowledged 

10 receipt of this appraisal which forms the basis of their 

11 intentional misrepresentation clause. Paragraph 16 was in 

12 October 2008. They're four years past that discovery when 

13 they filed their action so it has to be dismissed. 

14 Your Honor, finally, this gets us to the lnverse 

15 condemnation. I think it's very clear, and I would ask the 

16 Court to take a close reading at Provasco v. City of Reno. 

17 But the Court, the Nevada Supreme Court reconfirms that it has 

18 repudiated any private right of action for negative implied 

19 easement of light, air or view or visibility, and they go on 

20 to state the Nevada law does not recognize a claim for an 

21 implied negative easement or Vlew or visibility in eminent 

22 domain proceedings. It can't get much clearer than that. 

23 And I think you then need to -- and so, they -- we 

24 argued that in our motion saylng: The law doesn't support it. 

25 So they get real crafty in their opposition and say: Well, 
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1 it's not really a negative easement it's really an implied 

2 easement on 1-15 and NDOT's property to ensure that visibility 

3 from people on that property, on the freeway, can see our 

4 slgn. 

5 So it's not really what Provasco is talking about. 

6 Well, I think that's completely disingenuous but -- and so 

7 they argue that we've somehow given them an implied easement 

8 or express easement and they relate back to the appraisal that 

9 they didn't have and they pull a couple sentences out of that. 

10 Well, Judge, go back to the settlement agreement, 

11 it has an integration clause in it. It says the entire 

12 settlement agreement is in that release and settlement 

13 agreement. They can't go outside the four corners of that 

14 clear unambiguous settlement agreement and rely upon a couple 

15 of sentences in the appraisal, which they didn't have, to 

16 support their position that we've given them an implied or 

17 express easement for visibility. It's circular. It's 

18 nonsensical and it should not withstand the Court's scrutiny. 

19 Case law is clear. They're not -- this is not a 

20 recognized claim in Nevada. There's no recorded easement, no 

21 express right to visibility in the settlement agreement, and 

22 the quitclaim release specifically says: No warranty, express 

23 or implied. So they don't get there. 

24 Judge, I think, finally, the tort claims I touched 

25 on, those are all barred by the discretionary immunity. We 
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1 didn't see any case law that came back in the opposition that 

2 suggests this roadway decisions and construction decisions on 

3 a design built project are anything but discretionary. 

4 Finally, just check my notes, Your Honor. I thank 

5 you and everyone for your patience. Your Honor, think those 

6 are the lssues. If the Court has any questions I would just 

7 reserve a brief rebuttal and thank you for your patience. 

8 THE COURT: Thank you, Mr. Coulthard. Mr. Olsen. 

9 MR. OLSEN: Yes, Your Honor. There's a lot to cover. 

10 THE COURT: There's a lot to cover, yeah. 

11 MR. OLSEN: But let me start -- let me start with the 

12 exhibits that Mr. Coulthard gave to the Court and to me 

13 because I think some of the things he said in conjunction with 

14 those are inaccurate or confusing, at least. 

15 Exhibit 1 was the -- is the blue tinted aerial --

16 THE COURT: Correct. 

17 MR. OLSEN: -- as I call the pork chop which is the 

18 exchange property outlined there. Just so we're clear, this 

19 was said a couple of times. The property that the -- that 

20 NDOT condemned that started this process rolling was not on 

21 the other side of the freeway. It's on this side of the 

22 freeway and it's actually where the now existing Blue Diamond, 

23 in this diagram goes, which is two-thirds the way down. 

24 He owned the property at the corner and the State 

25 wanted to change that configuration, or you may recall 
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1 originally, it was way over on the side. 

2 THE COURT: The Blue Diamond and Las Vegas Boulevard? 

3 MR. OLSEN: Right. So it isn't across the freeway. That 

4 whole process -- what you have here is really, the State 

5 starts by condemning Mr. Nassiri's property. As a part of the 

6 resolution of that, they sold Mr. Nassiri this landlocked 

7 piece of property and that -- which is the issue. By the way, 

8 they didn't get any premium for their assemblage of this 

9 property but that's how this started. 

10 And really, this is all a settlement of the 

11 condemnation case and that's where some of the duties, such as 

12 the duty to disclose, which they acknowledge exists to 

13 disclose the value being given in the condemnation case, it 

14 wasn't really disclosed because this sale is not an arm's 

15 length transaction in that sense. 

16 Well, first of all, it's with the State and it's 

17 also part of an overall settlement of the condemnation claim. 

18 So just to be clear, that's really the property is on this 

19 side of the freeway, on the east side. 

20 In the next Exhibit 2, I think this depicts pretty 

21 well the situation. Exhibit 3 though, this is the 

22 environmental assessment from October 2008, which is a copy. 

23 And I'll accept the representation, this is a copy of what was 

24 attached to the lease presented to Mr. Nassiri in April of 

25 2010 by the State's agent, Las Vegas Paving, showing the 
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1 configuration of the -- the planning configuration of the 

2 interchange. 

3 Now, had Mr. Nassiri known, at this point, what it 

4 was really going to look like or any point prior to its going 

5 under construction, he could have taken some action to try to 

6 stop this. Compare, though, what's in Exhibit 3 and Exhibit 1 

7 because that gives you an idea of the distinction. 

8 What you have in Exhibit 3, what Mr. Nassiri saw --

9 what Mr. Nassiri saw, both at the time at the beginning and in 

10 2010, was something that was not going to block the 

11 visibility, primarily from the northbound 1-15 lanes, people 

12 coming in from California or other places from the south, the 

13 maln route into the city. 

14 He has -- this property's at Blue Diamond so it's 

15 it's far south. The idea is to make this property visible. 

16 The idea lS to potentially sell it for a hotel/casino 

17 development or other -- there was talk about a stadium -- I 

18 mean, those kinds of developments. Visibility is crucial. 

19 And if you look what happened -- in fact, what they 

20 built was Exhibit 1 which completely -- and you may have been 

21 down there -- completely obstructs the view and you don't get 

22 the visibility I should say. 

23 And you don't get a perspective from the alr of how 

24 high this thing is. It is 60 feet above grade and it includes 

25 embankments which completely obscure this property from the 
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1 south -- completely obscure this property as you're crosslng 

2 Blue Diamond from -- along Blue Diamond west -- eastbound from 

3 the west. So just so we're clear this is -- it's a completely 

4 different scenarlO. 

5 And as late as 2010, at the time when Mr. Nassiri 

6 still had an opportunity to try to do something then to block 

7 this, the State was telling him nothing about what it was 

8 gOlng to look like -- nothing about the view that he had paid 

9 for being obscured. 

10 THE COURT: But In Nevada you can't pay for a Vlew. 

11 MR. OLSEN: I'm sorry, Your Honor. 

12 THE COURT: In Nevada, there's -- you can't pay for a 

13 Vlew. 

14 MR. OLSEN: Well, I'm gOlng to use the word "visibility" 

15 because we can skip to the Provasco lssue then if you'd like. 

16 First of all, I'll say that we believe that this contract 

17 breach here, regardless of Provasco, Provasco talked 

18 specifically about condemnation actions. 

19 We believe this is an affirmative easement across 

20 the State's property for view, for visibility. It's an 

21 affirmative easement. It's as though you had a path across 

22 this property. 

23 Here's the difference between Provasco too. In 99.9 

24 percent of the condemnation cases you're not buying the 

25 property from the State, you contracted with the State, you 
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1 have, whether it's express, and there isn't an express 

2 easement, but express or implied easement, you can have them 

3 In an agreement with the State. 

4 You don't have to have that typical situation where 

5 they just want a chunk of property which is how this started. 

6 You know, they're going to -- they're going to, you know, 

7 propose a value for you you can fight about it and resolve 

8 it. 

9 This is our contract with the State. They knew 

10 because it's in their appraisal and even though they didn't 

11 give it to us, they knew they were charging for the view. 

12 There's something said in the papers of the State about, you 

13 know, confusing this with a premium for assemblage and that 

14 if you take the lower value, the 15.5 million dollar value, 

15 the value that, had they told Mr. Nassiri about, he would have 

16 negotiated with the State because -- why would he want to pay 

17 eight million dollars 46 percent premium for this property? 

18 Had they if you look at appraisal it talked 

19 specifically about the view and you know, yes, out of a 50-

20 page document -- Counsel, it's fair to say I picked out some 

21 language, yes. But the language lS part of the valuation. 

22 It's part of the assessment. It lS critical to this. 

23 And if you go to the property or you look at the 

24 pictures you know it lS. What is the value of a landlocked 

25 piece of land abutting the freeway? It has certain value. 
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1 But the State acknowledged through its appralser that the 

2 value, substantial in that value was the visibility. 

3 What they did though, they turned around and 

4 destroyed that value. Now they've acknowledged, State's 

5 acknowledged we still have -- even under their argument we 

6 have an lnverse condemnation case with respect to access. 

7 There are access lssues and that's not before you 

8 today. But this issue, this easement across the State's 

9 property, that needs to be brought, that needs to be heard. 

10 I think it's said somewhere in their papers that 

11 really it's a negative easement against building something; 

12 it's really not. It's as if you had an access road 

13 THE COURT: The road that we have here, if you -- this lS 

14 filed originally, I think, as a motion to dismiss. The 

15 information outside the pleadings isn't In so it really 

16 becomes a motion for summary judgment. So the question is, as 

17 are there questions of fact here or lS there a dispute as 

18 to the law as to what it is Mr. Nassiri's claim lS. 

19 So that's really the argument here is that as Mr. 

20 Coulthard has very eloquently laid out the entire history and 

21 -- there's still questions here about whether Mr. Nassiri 

22 would have engaged or entered into this contract had he been 

23 glven certain information. 

24 MR. OLSEN: Yes, Your Honor. 

25 THE COURT: So it's a breach of contract claim. It gets 
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1 us down to his maln argument with those. Then, how do we get 

2 around summary judgment? Summary judgment --

3 MR. OLSEN: The waiver? 

4 THE COURT: -- the statute of limitations even if there 

5 are questions of fact as to whether Mr. Nassiri is entitled to 

6 raise these causes of action, which I still have statute of 

7 limitations problems with alot of this because it does go back 

8 so far. 

9 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, let me address that. Inverse 

10 condemnation, that's not an lssue. 

11 THE COURT: I would agree. 

12 MR. OLSEN: With respect to the breach of contract and 

13 the bad faith claims, you understand what I'm saying, the 

14 breach of the 

15 THE COURT: Correct. 

16 MR. OLSEN: -- covenant of good faith and fair dealing. 

17 MR. OLSEN: With respect to those, those are six year 

18 statutes of limitation. 

19 THE COURT: Right. 

20 MR. OLSEN: The earliest point at which Mr. Nassiri could 

21 have known of any breach -- now we're talking about breaches 

22 that are at the beginning, and really the breaches -- there's 

23 some question about what the breaches are. There's a breach 

24 of -- by violating this what we say is an easement, that's a 

25 contract claim as well. There's also -- well, destruction. 
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1 The biggest one is really destruction of the consideration. 

2 The consideration for this contract in large part was the 

3 visibility and they destroyed the visibility. 

4 They say: I won't skip to the waiver. They say: 

5 The waivers which really generally talk about either past 

6 actions or the as is condition of the property is a waiver of 

7 everything. It certainly can't be waiver of their future 

8 contract breaches but that breach -- those breaches of 

9 contract, we couldn't have known about any breaches of 

10 contract until at least 2008. 

11 You're talking about the failure to disclose. The 

12 breach by interfering with our easement and destroying the 

13 consideration, destroying the thing you were buying, that 

14 didn't happen until 2010. So on the contract claims and the 

15 bad faith claims, I don't think there's any issue about 

16 statute of limitations. 

17 THE COURT: Okay. 

18 MR. OLSEN: I think those statutes are safe. 

19 THE COURT: Yeah, they --

20 MR. OLSEN: I will acknowledge there's an lssue with 

21 respect to the tort claims. 

22 THE COURT: Okay. Well then, let's talk first about the 

23 tortious interference with or tortious breach of implied 

24 covenant. I don't really view that as a pure tort that the 

25 immunity statutes apply to; it arlses out of a contract. 
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1 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, that's -- I think if you look at 

2 case law -- we didn't cite this case law because their real 

3 argument was about special relationship. 

4 THE COURT: Right. 

5 MR. OLSEN: It isn't akin to some sort of, you know, 

6 negligence claim or another kind of a tort. 

7 THE COURT: Where the statute of immunity applies and you 

8 know 

9 MR. OLSEN: Intentional torts, of course, are excluded. 

10 THE COURT: . , h -- It s -- yea . But it's a contract claim 

11 that 

12 MR. OLSEN: It arlses from contract. 

13 THE COURT: Arises from a contract but it's tort damages. 

14 I don't know, to me, that's not the kind of thing that the 

15 governmental immunity statute was meant to bar. 

16 MR. OLSEN: Well we would agree, Your Honor, and that --

17 all that the difference there is you get, potentially, your 

18 damages can be different under the --

19 THE COURT: Okay. 

20 MR. OLSEN: We're gOlng to concede punitive damages. 

21 THE COURT: Correct. 

22 MR. OLSEN: But even the standard for what damages you 

23 collect is slightly different for, obviously, a contract 

24 claim. 

25 THE COURT: Right. And ultimately it may be that the 
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1 ultimate case, as we get further down the road here, it may 

2 not be an appropriate case for lnverse condemnation. Maybe it 

3 really lS a breach of contract action. Because it seems to me 

4 it's kind of -- I don't know if it can be both or if it's one 

5 or the other. I'm not really clear on how you could get all 

6 of this, but anyway, I don't think that's a question for 

7 today. So --

8 MR. OLSEN: And Your Honor, unless you have questions on 

9 the special relationship argument. 

10 THE COURT: So moving -- no, it's the State. Moving on 

11 to 5 and 6, the negligent misrepresentation and intentional 

12 misrepresentation, I kind of think we have two issues there 

13 which are the statute of limitations and the -- I mean to me I 

14 appreciate your arguments that it's not discretionary 

15 function. That this is -- I don't see how it could be 

16 anything but discretionary. It's not ministerial. 

17 It's not -- I mean the easiest was always the 

18 decision to place a stop slgn is discretionary, cutting down 

19 the tree that blocks it is ministerial. So to me this isn't 

20 cutting down a tree blocking a stop sign. This is -- we're 

21 gOlng to put an exchange here. We're going to put flyover 

22 here. This is for the public good. 

23 We need to have this interstate exchange, which I 

24 have to tell you, I get lost every time and I always miss that 

25 thing to get off the -- at the airport. It's a mess. 
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1 But you know how they design it and where they put 

2 it, that's -- isn't that just the definition of discretionary? 

3 MR. OLSEN: Well, Your Honor, let me say a couple things. 

4 First of all, there's a couple of non-disclosures. One was 

5 back at the beginning when they failed to disclose the 

6 appraisal, which we think they had a duty to -- it's part of 

7 the settlement of a condemnation case. 

8 THE COURT: Right. But it doesn't mean they can be sued 

9 for that. It --

10 MR. OLSEN: Well, they -- they didn't glve us that; 

11 that's the first one --

12 THE COURT: On a tort theory. 

13 MR. OLSEN: then they hid --

14 THE COURT: On a tort theory. 

15 MR. OLSEN: --then they hid -- and we'll address this 

16 either intentionally or negligently In 2010, the fact that 

17 this new design was gOlng to go up and we were prevented from, 

18 at that point, from taking any action. I can't tell you what 

19 the result of that action would have been but I can tell you 

20 that there would have been. So there are these two events in 

21 time. 

22 We said this, I think, In the papers but taking 

23 at the beginning, the decision to condemn our property in the 

24 first place, I mean that's a policy decision. They can't get 

25 sued for that. 
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1 THE COURT: Correct. 

2 MR. OLSEN: It's the things they do once -- and probably 

3 even deciding they're gOlng to sell us a piece of property. 

4 But it's the things they do In that process. It's failure to 

5 disclose to us the appraisal. It's failure to glve us an 

6 indication about Mr. Kerogli's case. By the way, Counsel 

7 doesn't know the assertion that the Kerogli, Mr. Kerogli was 

8 Nassiri's partner, is certainly outside the pleadings. It's 

9 also not correct. That whole issue shouldn't even be part of 

10 this discussion today. That's a seven million dollar dig. 

11 We're not making a claim, by the way, for the 

12 Chambers and maybe the Court's discounted that. We put In the 

13 $200,000 he spent on that just to show how much Mr. Nassiri 

14 has into this now. We acknowledge Chambers was expressly 

15 waived; no doubt about that. But that is in there just to 

16 kind of show you everything that he had at stake. 

17 That's our position on as far as discretionary 

18 function, I think that is what they did within -- once you get 

19 past a policy decision, at the beginning or once you get past 

20 the policy decision in 2010 to build this thing, don't tell us 

21 something different through your agent. 

22 THE COURT: Okay. But then that's -- I guess where I 

23 just get 

24 MR. OLSEN: Then back to the statute of limitations. 

25 THE COURT: Statute of limitations. So that it's 2000 
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1 your position lS these misrepresentations were made in 2010? 

2 Not back when the whole thing was originally negotiated with 

3 them? 

4 MR. OLSEN: Well, we discovered -- I will admit this. To 

5 the extent that the allegations include the allegation that 

6 they committed a tort by not disclosing or by not disclosing 

7 the premium, in 2005 we discovered that. 2008, I think 

8 sometime in 2008 we discovered it. It's not clear when that 

9 lS but --

10 THE COURT: Okay. 

11 MR. OLSEN: -- I think we have to acknowledge that the 

12 statute of limitations on the intentional misrepresentation on 

13 that portion ran -- could have begun to run began to run In 

14 2008. Now I think that they -- this notion of building the 

15 flyover and that misrepresentation -- we don't know, there's 

16 no evidence when they actually learned or decided. Counsel 

17 said it's a design build but we don't know when that design 

18 change occurred. We don't know what they knew. 

19 We're entitled to discovery to find out on that 

20 lssue when they decided to build the flyover. Was it a 

21 misrepresentation back in the beginning which we discovered in 

22 2010 or was it a misrepresentation in 2010 which prevented us 

23 from taking any action? 

24 I have to concede on the premlum lssue. It's a bad 

25 faith lssue. I think the misrepresentation claim has arguably 
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1 run. On the 2010 timeframe, I think we're still entitled to 

2 explore when they decided to build the flyover. 

3 THE COURT: Okay. But to prove --

4 MR. OLSEN: What other questions you have, Your Honor? 

5 THE COURT: -- but to prove because that's what my 

6 problem is. I still -- I'm still not seeing this as anything 

7 other than discretionary actions. Deciding to build a 

8 flyover; they've got immunity for that. 

9 MR. OLSEN: Deciding --

10 THE COURT: It's discretionary. 

11 MR. OLSEN: Deciding not to tell us, deciding to provide 

12 us through their agent with a map --

13 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

14 MR. OLSEN: -- which you've seen which tells us they're 

15 not going to build a flyover. It tells us the plans 

16 they're different. It's a flyover, it's not the flyover that 

17 destroyed our view. They're telling us something different. 

18 Mr. Nassiri didn't know until he saw this edifice built the 

19 end of 2010. 

20 THE COURT: But I just -- I'm not first of all I'm not 

21 seeing how it's negligence and if it's if it lS negligence 

22 then they're immune. That's my problem with this whole thing. 

23 It seems to me like this lS a contract action. 

24 MR. OLSEN: I guess well, and it certainly is a 

25 contract action we would say with respect to this issue that 
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1 it lS not part of their -- it's not a part of policy --

2 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

3 MR. OLSEN: -- to through their agent present our 

4 client with a document which he relied on because it's for 

5 purposes of leasing --

6 THE COURT: Right. 

7 MR. OLSEN: -- part of this property as a staging area in 

8 2010. He saw no problem with it. He saw the design wasn't 

9 gOlng to affect the property. So at least as to that piece, 

10 yes, it's a policy decision to build the thing. It is a day 

11 to day act of discretion to present it to us as something 

12 different; that's our position. 

13 THE COURT: Okay. All right. 

14 MR. OLSEN: That's our position on that lssue. 

15 THE COURT: Okay. Thank you. 

16 MR. OLSEN: What else can -- what do you have specific 

17 questions about? There are a lot of things. 

18 THE COURT: I -- yeah, I will tell --

19 MR. OLSEN: I was gOlng to go through more but --

20 THE COURT: I will tell you and just so Mr. Coulthard 

21 knows what to address when he stands back up. I agree, I 

22 think you're entitled to continue with your lnverse 

23 condemnation action. I appreciate Mr. Coulthard's argument 

24 that to the extent that there is -- it's about Vlew or 

25 visibility, you know, that's something I think we have to 
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1 litigate at a later date. 

2 The second, third and fourth causes of action which 

3 have to do with breach of contract and breach of the covenant 

4 of good faith, I'm not really sure what the benefit of 

5 contractual breach of implied covenant and tortious breach of 

6 implied covenant -- what the difference is or why there's any 

7 benefit there. 

8 Because I guess I'm -- there's no oplnlon of damages 

9 so, what's the real benefit of distinguishing between them 

10 that way? But I can appreciate that there might have been a 

11 tortious breach but then I think I'm getting into my whole 

12 problems with the negligent misrepresentation and intentional 

13 misrepresentation. I just think there's immunity. And you 

14 know, I did a lot of immunity work and I just, you know 

15 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, if I can pullout the 

16 THE COURT: -- my background, I just view it as immune 

17 I think they're lmmune from this. 

18 MR. OLSEN: Understood. But I understand not with 

19 respect to the tortious --

20 THE COURT: And that's why, like I said I'm --

21 MR. OLSEN: for each claim. 

22 THE COURT: inclined to let it stand but I just -- I'm 

23 telling you I'm not sure I really see a lot of distinction and 

24 so it's without any prejudice to renew these issues at a later 

25 date because I'm not sure I'm understanding the distinction 
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1 there. But I think that that's really up to me where it lS. 

2 It's all about this contract and about the breach of the 

3 contract. I really don't see independent causes of action for 

4 negligent misrepresentation and intentional misrepresentation. 

5 I just think there's immunity and statute of limitation 

6 problems both. 

7 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor. 

8 THE COURT: I just -- I don't see how I can get around 

9 those issues to allow those two causes of actions to go 

10 forward. To me it seems like it's all about this contract. 

11 MR. OLSEN: And Your Honor, I have nothing to add to 

12 that. 

13 THE COURT: And I got to tell you, I am not foreclosing 

14 them from bringing up, later, any other statute of limitations 

15 defenses if it turns out that, you know, there was notice at 

16 any earlier date, because I -- there's real problems with the 

17 timing in this thing, Mr. Olsen. 

18 MR. OLSEN: Your Honor, and we appreciate that and I 

19 think that no matter what happens going forward, I mean there 

20 may -- some -- there'll be some discovery about what they --

21 THE COURT: Right. 

22 MR. OLSEN: -- decided when or knew when; I understand 

23 that. 

24 THE COURT: Right. 

25 MR. OLSEN: It could affect things. I think some -- a 
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1 couple of these dates are pretty hard and fast dates. If, you 

2 know, just as an aside, the distinction between tortious and 

3 contractual breach of covenant --

4 THE COURT: Well you can't get punitives, I mean, because 

5 

6 MR. OLSEN: Without punitives, there's still --

7 THE COURT: Right. 

8 MR. OLSEN: -- and you know this will probably be for 

9 Jury instructions, there lS a different flow of damages --

10 THE COURT: Right. Uh-huh. 

11 MR. OLSEN: -- from a tort claim than contract claim. 

12 THE COURT: Right. 

13 MR. OLSEN: You get into the damages on the contract and 

14 consequentials and those lssues --

15 THE COURT: Right. 

16 MR. OLSEN: -- under the tort claim. Whatever you can 

17 show flows from that breach. 

18 THE COURT: And then we get into --

19 MR. OLSEN: You're entitled to argue including potential 

20 attorneys fees. 

21 THE COURT: -- that whole issue of, was it an act that 

22 was discretionary versus negligence? I think that -- I think 

23 that's where you're entitled to do your discovery. Was it 

24 negligent--

25 MR. OLSEN: Yes, Your Honor. 
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1 THE COURT: -- or discretionary? I just my big 

2 problem with those fourth and fifth causes of beg your 

3 pardon, my fifth and sixth causes of action: Negligent 

4 misrepresentation and intentional misrepresentation. I don't 

5 understand how anything could happen that either didn't fall 

6 well outside the statute of limitations or there wouldn't be 

7 immunity for. 

8 I'm just really -- I don't see how those -- you can 

9 surVlve the immunity statute on those two causes of action. 

10 MR. OLSEN: All I would ask with respect to that issue is 

11 to look closely at the actions that were taken. It is not the 

12 case that once the State decides to build an intersection or 

13 to do something that everything else they do after that with 

14 that concerns, in any way and touches upon that 

15 intersection, is something they're immune from; we know that. 

16 We know it's the, you know 

17 THE COURT: Well, you said that they may have used your 

18 client's property as a staging area if they, I don't know, ran 

19 over somebody with a truck coming out of the staging area, 

20 yeah; I mean there's not immunity from that but --

21 MR. OLSEN: But even with aspect to the zonlng, Your 

22 Honor, I know there's a case called Armisano (phonetic 

23 throughout) which is an example that came to my mind. Moving 

24 the freeway overpass, I think, at Flamingo was a policy 

25 decision. 
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1 THE COURT: Right, uh-huh. 

2 MR. OLSEN: Putting the guardrails not far enough out to 

3 keep Mr. Armisano alive was a day to day decision for which 

4 the State was liable. 

5 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

6 MR. OLSEN: That's the kind of thing --

7 THE COURT: Right. 

8 MR. OLSEN: It is everything, even to do with the 

9 execution of the design. 

10 THE COURT: And that's why I said -- that's why I said, 

11 putting up a stop slgn, absolutely immune, maintaining the 

12 tree limbs around it so that somebody can see it, ministerial. 

13 I don't understand how --

14 MR. OLSEN: We pulled the tree limbs down In the 

15 negotiation process, Your Honor. 

16 THE COURT: I don't understand how anything, with respect 

17 to negotiating this deal with Mr. Nassiri, could have been 

18 ministerial. It's -- I mean that's not what it's about. 

19 MR. OLSEN: Oh, but don't you think -- don't you think a 

20 decision 

21 THE COURT: I'm just really struggling with this, Mr. 

22 Olsen. 

23 MR. OLSEN: Don't you think a decision not to, assumlng a 

decision was made 24 -- but let's assume a decision was made, 

25 we're not going to give them the appraisal. 
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1 THE COURT: Right. 

2 MR. OLSEN: They can't be protected from that. I mean, 

3 let's say there's no statute of limitations issue and, you 

4 know, two days after we've done this deal, we learn that or 

5 some other fact that's a misrepresentation. We've got to be 

6 we've got to have a fraud. They can't -- because they 

7 In the process of negotiation hit something or affirmatively 

8 lied about something or took some other action within that 

9 process, that they're immune? 

10 It can't go on just because, if the orlgln lS a 

11 policy decision to condemn Mr. Nassiri's strip of land, that 

12 everything else they do is golden or it's protected; that 

13 can't be. I'd ask you to think about that. 

14 THE COURT: Okay. 

15 MR. COULTHARD: Very briefly, rebuttal, Your Honor. I 

16 think Mr. Olsen's a fine attorney and he did a fine tap dance 

17 around a lot of difficult issues he was presented with but it 

18 reminds me of the -- if you have the facts on your side and 

19 argue the facts, you got the law on your side and argue law, 

20 if you don't, drag a dead skunk around the courtroom. That's 

21 what he's doing here today, Judge. 

22 He's touching on some lssues here and there but he's 

23 not addressing the facts or the law as plead in his first 

24 Amended Complaint. 

25 Your Honor, I think you're right on with your 
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1 analysis and I would as to the -- whether this is a 

2 discretionary function, and I would refer you to the case law 

3 cited on page 14 of our reply brief, State of Nevada v. 

4 Webster, states Nevada Supreme Court: 

5 "That the decision to construct a highway is a 

6 policy determination and a discretionary act 

7 lmmune from tort liability." 

8 And Delino: 

9 "We have held that the initial decision to 

10 construct a highway is a policy determination." 

11 And Brisko v. County of Clark holding that: 

12 "The preparation of plans and specifications 

13 for future construction, all approved by the 

14 County, were the product and the exercise of 

15 the County's discretionary function and are 

16 exempt and not actionable." 

17 The third, the fourth, fifth and sixth claims which 

18 were tortious breach of the implied covenant, negligent 

19 misrepresentation and intentional misrepresentation are all --

20 the State and NDOT, it's division is immune from liability for 

21 those claims. I think that ends that inquiry and it didn't 

22 address the three year statute on fraud. I think maybe he 

23 admitted it. 

24 But Your Honor, the -- I am concerned with when the 

25 Court states that you consider this a contract action. 
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1 THE COURT: Well, that's the claim. I mean, I think, and 

2 under our very low pleading standard, we don't have Iqbal and 

3 Twombly, he's allowed to do some discovery. And I think 

4 that's really 

5 MR. COULTHARD: What 

6 THE COURT: where it lS. It's really -- was there a 

7 conflict? 

8 MR. COULTHARD: I would generally agree, Judge if -- if, 

9 importantly, they could point to a contractual duty within the 

10 contract that they're suing on. The settlement agreement and 

11 release is the contract they're suing on, a contractual duty 

12 that obligates NDOT to number one -- and they're complaining 

13 about two things: Breach of contract the failure to 

14 provide the 2000 -- well the exchange property appraisal. I 

15 think it was dated 2004 or 2005. That's their one complaint 

16 and then the building of the flyover. 

17 Neither of those claims -- there lS no duty in the 

18 settlement agreement or the quitclaim deed that creates a duty 

19 to turn over this appraisal. There is nothing in the 

20 statutes, nothing In the law that says we've got to turn that 

21 over, no contractual provision in this arm's length negotiated 

22 contract by sophisticated parties, with their lawyers, that 

23 creates that duty. And the quitclaim deed expressly states 

24 there is no warranty --

25 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 
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1 MR. COULTHARD: -- express or implied, created. We've 

2 got an integration clause. There is no duty, Judge, and we 

3 said it in our moving papers, in our motion to dismiss and 

4 they could not point to a duty in either of the four corners 

5 of the quitclaim deed or the settlement agreement. 

6 And they tried to go outside of the four corners of 

7 the agreement despite the integration clause and argue from a 

8 sentence in the appraisal, and I would suggest they can't 

9 create a duty that way because there are -- there is specific 

10 language In the quitclaim deed that says: 

11 "Grantor makes no warranty, express or implied, 

12 of any kind, with respect to any matter 

13 affecting the property." 

14 End of story. No duty. No breach of contract. That 

15 leaves them -- what we should be talking about, Judge, is the 

16 lnverse condemnation action. That claim we're prepared to 

17 defend, and if Your Honor lS not prepared to dismiss the --

18 THE COURT: Uh-huh. 

19 MR. COULTHARD: -- visibility then, okay, that issue, 

20 which I think the Nevada Supreme Court has been given as clear 

21 and concise direction that it is not a viable cause of action 

22 In this State, then that moves forward with their allegations 

23 

24 THE COURT: Right. 

25 MR. COULTHARD: that we impact it --
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1 THE COURT: Yeah. That alone --

2 MR. COULTHARD: and we'll do some discovery. 

3 THE COURT: that alone, it's not the basis for an 

4 inverse condemnation claim, but if there's something else, 

5 they can do their discovery on it and try to prove it. 

6 I'm not gOlng to dismiss the breach of contract 

7 action, I think they're entitled to do some discovery. I 

8 still am really not -- I -- I think they're gOlng to -- the 

9 real problem's gOlng to be statute of limitations and that's 

10 never waived. 

11 And you can certainly -- so it's without prejudice, 

12 to renew this at a later date because I don't see how they're 

13 I think there's really problems with the statute of 

14 limitations here, at a minimum. And whether we can get into 

15 all these other issues, duty and all those other things at a 

16 later date, I -- I think that's the one that should be raised. 

17 The tortious breach of implied covenant lS -- it's 

18 kind of an interesting cause of action and I have real 

19 questions about -- I'm just not sure it's what the immunity 

20 statutes intended to bar but, you know, I think we need to 

21 like take another look at that at a later date, because to me 

22 that's kind of an interesting question: Whether the 

23 governmental immunity statute bars tortious breach of implied 

24 covenant? It's just an interesting legal concept. 

25 I just -- I'm, Mr. Olsen, I just -- I don't see how 
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1 you -- how negligent misrepresentation and intentional 

2 misrepresentation can survive the immunity statute. It's 

3 about building a freeway overpass, which I believe is 

4 discretionary. This allegation that they didn't tell us 

5 something about it, you know, in the context of settling the 

6 previous case, that's where the breach of contract cause of 

7 action, I think, arlses. 

8 I just don't see how those torts can surVlve, 

9 particularly since they've got a three year statute of 

10 limitations, and I'm not sure that what the 2010 allegation 

11 is, but basically, it seems to be 2008 -- and that it was 

12 discovered. 

13 So, I just don't see how you can surVlve on the 

14 statute of limitations either. So, for those two reasons I'm 

15 going to -- I'm dismissing the fifth and sixth causes of 

16 action and the rest of it without prejudice, at this point In 

17 time, for Mr. Coulthard to renew at a later date. 

18 But I think you're entitled, under our very low 

19 pleading standard in Nevada, to do some discovery on your 

20 contract causes of action. Inverse condemnation, you're all 

21 agreed that's gOlng forward. But -- so it's certainly without 

22 prejudice, to renew his objections to your contract claims at 

23 a later date, particularly since I have real questions about 

24 the fourth one on tortious breach. 

25 I'm not sure that's really something you can sue the 
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1 State for, but anyway, we'll let it go and then we'll see --

2 MR. OLSEN: Understood, Your Honor. 

3 THE COURT: where we can go, but -- so I will grant it 

4 In part and deny it In part. And I'm only granting it as to 

5 fifth and sixth. It's entirely without prejudice to be 

6 renewed at a later date, Mr. Coulthard, on these other --

7 these other legal issues, particularly since we got real 

8 statute of limitations problems. 

9 MR. COULTHARD: Thank, Your Honor 

10 MR. OLSEN: Thank you so much. 

11 MR. COULTHARD: I'll prepare the order and run it by Mr. 

12 Olsen. 

13 THE COURT: Okay. 

14 MR. COULTHARD: Thank you for your patience. 

15 THE COURT: Okay, would you like your notebook back? 

16 MR. OLSEN: You want your notebook? 

17 THE COURT: You want your notebook? I'm gOlng to keep 

18 these. 

19 MR. COULTHARD: We can -- I can leave those for Your 

20 Honor. 

21 THE COURT: Okay, I'm keeping these nlce pictures so I 

22 can remember how this place looks. And if we can take a break 

23 we'll come back and do our 10:30. 

24 COURT CLERK: No. 

25 THE COURT: No, we still have one thing at 9. 

www.avtranz.com . (800) 257-0885 

PA00222



68 

1 MR. COULTHARD: Thank you very much, Your Honor. Thank 

2 you, everybody. 

3 

4 [Proceeding Concluded at 12:00 p.m.] 
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ATTEST: I do hereby certify that I have truly and correctly 

transcribed the audio/video recording in the above entitled 

case to the best of my ability. 

Dianna Aldom, CET**236, Transcriber 
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5 PA00755-774 
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6 PA01151-1170 
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Bench Trial Ruling) 

9 PA01763-1812 

Hearing Transcript.1 (Motion to Exclude Damages 
Evidence or Strike Harper-Oral Arguments) 

12 PA02389-2455 

Hearing Transcript.2 (Motion to Exclude Damages 
Evidence or Strike Harper-Announcement of 
Ruling) 

12 PA02349-2388 

Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on Nassiri’s 
Contract Claims  

4 PA00596-726 

Motion for Partial Summary Judgment on Nassiri’s 5 PA00727-754 

1



Prayer for Rescission  
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Reply in Support of the State’s Motion to Exclude 
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